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State of California  

Request for Qualifications 

Affordable Housing Development  

For Excess Sites  

Under Executive Order N-06-19 
Locations: Atascadero, Gilroy, Montebello, and 
Sacramento, CA  
 

RFQ QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS  
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1. Considering that the sites have very different contexts and may have different populations, 
our qualifications for each site would be specific to that site and we may have different 
partners. If an organization is responding to more than one site, should we submit two 
separate sets of qualifications/proposals? 

 
We ask that you describe your qualifications for all sites in one SOQ and stay within the page 
limit, yet you can use multiple exhibits to denote different sets of qualifications and/or partners.  If 
doing so, please provide clear guidance as to which exhibit pertains to which or multiple sites.  
 

2. Will there be an opportunity to visit the site prior to the RFQ deadline? We’re specifically 
interested in the Montebello site. 

 
Respondents are welcome to independently assess the site(s) from publicly accessible vantage 
points.  No right of entry to subject properties is either given or implied through this RFQ. There 
will be no guided site visits at the RFQ stage. Please do not disturb current tenants, where 
applicable.  We expect the existing improvements to be demolished by the developer as part of 
their construction of the housing. 
 

3. Are we allowed to submit two responses for both the RFQ and RFP stages (assuming 
we’re invited to apply for the RFP)? 

 
Please only provide one response to the RFQ.  If a proposal is requested, we will request up to 
one proposal per site. 

 
4. Will the site be delivered with utilities stubbed to site permit ready?  

 
Sites will be delivered as is. Conditions will vary from site-to-site. 

 
5. What off sites will need to be done at whose cost?  

 
Customary off-site improvements will be expected, with the cost included in the project’s 
construction budget. Conditions will vary from site-to-site. 

 
6. Will there be a process to streamline permitting with one or just a few points if contact? 

 
There will be an assigned DGS staff person for each site who will be the single point of contact 
for all matters relating to DGS for all stages of development. 
 
 

7. Are there any requirements for subcontractors or trades working the site? 
 
Currently, the program includes a prevailing wage requirement. This does not preclude future 
contracting or labor regulations. 
 

8. Will parking requirements be eased depending on the population?  
 
Parking requirements will be determined via discussions with DGS, the city, and the developer. 
 

9. Does every unit have to ADA complaint or just a percentage? 
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Minimum accessibility requirements are established by the California Building Code. The Excess 
Sites program seeks to maximize access in balance with other objectives. 
 

10. Is any of this contingent on services being provided?  
 

It is expected that on-site social services are provided to the levels customary and/or required for 
low-income housing. 
 

11. Do we have responsibility for qualifying Resident’s- section 8 or Veterans voucher or 
similar? 

 
It will be the developer’s responsibility to a) obtain the Section 8 vouchers they deem necessary 
for the project, and b) qualify residents against the requirements of all funding sources including 
Section 8 if applicable. 
  

12. Who at the state will be responsible for handling all the entitlement work under the State 
Sovereignty act? 

 
The Department of General Services will represent the State with regards to project approvals. 

 
13. In reviewing the local zoning codes for Atascadero, Montebello & Atascadero was the only 

city where the existing zoning did not allow a residential use.  Can you please verify if this 
is correct? 

 
All state-owned land under the EO N-06-19 program will allow for a residential use per the State’s 
sovereignty over land use approval of state-owned property. 

 
14. What is the maximum density allowed by the state? 

 
The state does not have a maximum density limit. However, respondents are encouraged to 
review the program Principles and Objectives when determining density and consider local 
context. 

 
15. What is the estimated closing date of these sites?  Is the ability to close quickly attractive 

to the state? 
 
There is no estimated closing date; however, as per Principle and Objective #2, timing efficiency 
is important and will be a scoring criterium at the RFP stage. 

 
16. Is there a security deposit required to be made for each site? 

 
No. 
 

17. Is there any existing ALTA Surveys that can be provided? 
 
No. 

 
18. Do any of the sites have disadvantaged business enterprise requirements? 

 
To be determined. 
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19. Will any of these sites have to utilized for interim or permanent supportive housing? 

 
Interim supportive housing is not currently contemplated for these sites. Permanent supportive 
housing is not a requirement; however, respondents are encouraged to review Principle & 
Objective #1 as well as the government code in Exhibit 2 regarding housing affordability. 

 
20. Are there additional parcels included in the Sacramento site?  

 
Yes. Please see revised Exhibit 3 included with this Q&A document. 


